
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI 
 

Board of Aldermen - Regular Session 
 

  

 

7:00 p.m. 
 

August 4, 2020 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

CONSENT AGENDA .................................................................................................................................................. 6 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN JULY 21, 2020 WORK SESSION MINUTES .................................................................................. 7 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN JULY 21, 2020 REGULAR SESSION MINUTES ............................................................................ 15 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT .................................................................................................................. 21 

ZONING 2412 NE 157TH TERRACE ................................................................................................................... 23 

RESCEND ORDINANCE 3062-20 PARKS AND STORMWATER TAX ...................................................... 28 

RE-ADOPT THE CODE OF ETHICS .................................................................................................................... 34 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT - HUMPHREY’S 100 GRAVEL GRINDER ........................................................ 46 

ACKNOWLEDGING EMERGENCY PURCHASE – MI5Q6 MIXER .............................................................. 51 

ACKNOWLEDGING EMERGENCY PURCHASE – CULVERT REPLACEMENT ......................................... 55 

BID AWARD – WI-FI AT HERITAGE PARK.................................................................................................... 62 

BID AWARD – CITY HALL AUDIO/VISUAL ................................................................................................... 76 

JUNE CARES EXPENDITURES .......................................................................................................................... 103 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 3 August 4, 2020 

AGENDA 

City of Smithville, Missouri 
 

Board of Aldermen – Regular Session Agenda  
 

August 4, 2020  
 

7:00 pm or immediately following the Work Session – City Hall Council 
Chambers **Via Videoconference** 

 

NOTICE:   *Due to the Health Officer’s orders for safety, public meetings 

and public comment during public meetings will require modification.  The 
City of Smithville is committed to transparent public meetings and will 
continue this commitment during the COVID-19 crisis.  Anyone who wishes 
to view the meeting may do so in real time as it will be streamed live on the 
city’s FaceBook page through FaceBook Live.  Attendance in person by 
members of the public will not be permitted.  
 

For Public Comment, please email your request to the City Clerk at 
ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting to be invited via Zoom.  
 

1. Call to Order  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Consent Agenda  
• Minutes 

o July 21, 2020 Board of Alderman Work Session Minutes 
o July 21, 2020 Board of Alderman Regular Session Minutes 

 

REPORTS FROM OFFICERS AND STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

4. Committee Reports 
 

5. City Administrator’s Report 
 
 
 
 

mailto:ldrummond@smithvillemo.org


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 4 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 

6. Bill No. 2864-20, Zoning 2412 NE 157th Terrace to R-1B – 2nd Reading 
   An Ordinance to approve the zoning of 2412 NE 157th Terrace, Lakeside Crossing 

recently annexed into the City Limits, to R-1B.  The initial zoning needs to be set by 
the City.  2nd reading by title only. 
 

7. Bill No. 2865,20 Rescind Ordinance 3062-20, Parks and Stormwater Tax – 
Emergency Ordinance Sponsored by Mayor Boley – 1st and 2nd Readings 
An Ordinance to rescind Ordinance 3062-20 and approve Bill No. 2866-20 for the 
half-cent sales tax for Parks and Stormwater with the corrected dates. 1st and 2nd 
readings by title only. 
 

8. Bill No. 2866-20, Re-Adopt the Code of Ethics – 1st Reading 
An Ordinance to Re-Adopt the Code of Ethics that complies with Missouri Ethics                         
Commission standards. 1st reading by title only. 
 

9. Resolution 807, Special Event Permit, Humphrey’s 100 Gravel Grinder 

A Resolution to approving a special event permit for Smithville Parks and 
Recreation for Humphrey’s 100 Gravel Grinder Bike Race at Courtyard Park on 
Saturday, September 26, 2020. 

 

10. Resolution 808, Acknowledging Emergency Purchase 
A Resolution acknowledging the emergency purchase of an expense for an amount 
of $9,154.76 to purchase and installation of a new Lightnin MI5Q6 mixer from Mid-
America Pump. 
 

11. Resolution 809, Acknowledging Emergency Purchase 
A Resolution acknowledging the emergency purchase of an expense for an amount 
of $17,255.60 for a culvert replacement and bank reconstruction on Cliff Drive.  
Repairs were done by Menke Excavating, LLC. 
 

12. Resolution 810-812, CARES Act Funding 
Approve Resolutions related to CARES Act Funding. 
 

A. Resolution 810, Award Bid No. 20-10, Wi-Fi at Heritage Park 
A Resolution to award Bid No. 20-10 to KCMOTech, LLC and authorize and 
direct the Mayor to execute an agreement in an amount not to exceed 

$30,331.81. 
 

B. Resolution 811, Award Bid No. 20-12, City Hall Audio/Visual 
A Resolution to award Bid No. 20-12 to Kansas City Audio-Visual and 
authorize and direct the Mayor to execute an agreement in an amount not to 
exceed $49,367.35. 

 

C. Resolution 812, June CARES Expenditures 
A Resolution to approve the eligible expenditures incurred between June 1, 
2020 and June 30, 2020 totaling $13,889.12 in the CARES Act Stimulus Fund. 

 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 5 August 4, 2020 

OTHER MATTERS BEFORE THE BOARD 

 

13. Public Comment  
Pursuant to the public comment policy, an email request must be submitted to 
the City Clerk at ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting. When 
recognized, please state your name, address and topic before speaking. Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

14. New Business From The Floor 
Pursuant to the order of business policy, members of the Board of Aldermen may 
request a new business item appear on a future meeting agenda.  

 

15. Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:ldrummond@smithvillemo.org
https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/PlanningCalendar-FutureMeetingsagenda11741134073020-100707AMa.pdf


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 6 

CONSENT AGENDA 

    City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: Administration 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 

Summary: 
 

Voting to approve would approve the Board of Aldermen minutes. 
 

Purpose: 

The Board of Aldermen can review and approve by a single motion. Any item can be 
removed from the consent agenda by a motion.  The following items are included for 
approval: 
 

Minutes 
   

o Approve the July 21, 2020 Board of Alderman Work Session Minutes 
o Approve the July 21, 2020 Board of Alderman Regular Session Minutes 

 
 

Impact 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: N/A 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 

Budget: N/A 

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve the consent agenda 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other:   

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 7 August 4, 2020 

Board of Aldermen July 21, 2020 Work Session Minutes  
 

SMITHVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMAN 
WORK SESSION 

July 21, 2020 6:00 p.m.  
City Hall Council Chambers 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this meeting was held via teleconference.     
 

Mayor, Aldermen, City Administrator, City Staff and City Attorney attended via 
the Zoom meeting app.  The meeting was streamed live on the city’s YouTube 
page with a link on the city’s FaceBook page.  Attendance in person by members 
of the public was not be permitted.   

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker called the Work Session meeting to order at 5:59 p.m. 
Board members present via Zoom: John Chevalier, Marv Atkins, Steve Sarver, 
Melissa Wilson and Dan Ulledahl.  Mayor Boley was absent. 
 

Staff present via Zoom: Cynthia Wagner, Nickie Lee, Chuck Soules, Dan Toleikis, 
Jack Hendrix, Matt Denton, Jason Lockridge and Linda Drummond. 

 

2. Discussion of FY21 Employee Handbook 
Nickie Lee, Assistant City Administrator, explained we do review our employee 
handbook every year for potential updates.  This is a really good practice and 
basically ensures that we are keeping in compliance with best practices and any new 
human resources related laws.  It also gives our employees an opportunity to give 
input to make sure that we are providing for our employees and giving guidance. 
Every year staff brings forward a few edits and proposals for the Board to review.  
Staff will then bring forward the amended Employee Handbook to adopt in 
September to be implemented in November with the new budget year. 
 

The first recommended revision came from the City attorneys, pertaining to equal 
opportunity employment discrimination and sexual harassment.  The definition and 
language in Section 3-1 Equal Employment Opportunity and Section 18-2 
Discrimination and Sexual Harassment is something that ties to federal language.   
In consultation with City attorneys, staff is recommending adding the term “or any 
other characteristic protected by law” to be in compliance with recent and potential 
future changes in federal equal opportunity categories.  
 

The next section is Temporary Assignment to Higher Level Positions and an example 
of that is when we had a director resign from Parks and Recreation and temporarily 
promoted an employee to the interim Parks and Recreation Director position.  This is 
in section 6-11 and allows us to put someone in an interim role. This is definitely 
something that we still want to do however, the prior language really excluded only 
one example of a time when it might not apply.  When someone is out on vacation, 
they would not need someone to fill in an interim role.  This change ensures that the 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 8 

language applied to any situation and would have to go through the City 
Administrator and through human resources rather than including and excluding a 
lot of different scenarios.  
 

Nickie explained that Section 6-13 Call Back and On-Call is really the most significant 
section from an employee and management standpoint.   
 

Section 6-13 Call-backBack and On-Call Time  
Callback Definition: A call back occurs whenever an employee is required to 
return to work after they have left work at the end of normal shift for that day.  
Employees who have left their normal workplace and who are called back to work 
shall be credited for actual time worked regardless of the number of individual calls 
or a minimum of one two (12) hours, whichever is greater, except the minimum 
guarantee shall not apply to calls which occur within two (2) hours of a scheduled 
reporting time. All call-back time shall count as hours worked, including minimum 
guarantee time. Employees shall accumulate time from the time they begin to 
perform services for the City until they complete the services or are relieved from 
duty.  
 

Employees who are required to appear in court in conjunction with their duties for 
the City shall be treated as called-back employees if the court appearance does not 
fall within their work schedules.  
 

On-Call Definition: Some employees will be required to rotate on an on-call basis 
to provide adequate call-back coverage. Employees designated to be on-call are 
expected to respond to departmental after-hour service needs as required by 
procedures established by their department.  
 

Department Heads in consultation with Human Resources are responsible for 
determining the need for On-Call availability and for assigning employees to On-Call 
status. The supervisor of the employee assigned to On-Call status shall maintain a 
roster of all qualified employees who may be required to be On-Call. An equitable 
rotation policy shall be followed in requiring employees to be On-Call.  
 

Employees scheduled and performing on call duty shall be paid one (1) hour regular 
pay for each weekday and two (2) hours pay for each weekend day and holiday in 
an on-call status regardless of whether or not they are called in to work. Employees 
who are on call are required to answer the call to return to work within one hour. 
 

This really applies to utilities for times like the water main break we recently had.  It 
is a perfect example of when an employee outside of their work hours has to come 
to work for any reason.  It can also be a police issue or it really could be an issue for 
an hourly employee if they have to be called back in to work.   
 

We are recommending adding on-call time that will actually compensate an 
employee for when they're on-call.  The on-call time only applies for an employee 
when they are on-call and do not end up coming to work that day.   



  Regular Session 

 Page 9 August 4, 2020 

Section 8-5 acknowledges that there are times when an employee has a 
telecommuting work schedule.  That section of the handbook really only 
encompassed a traditional work schedule.  It basically said most employees come to 
the office Monday through Friday.  Staff has added a section that captured this 
scenario where somebody may telework.    
  

Section 11-5 – Shared Leave Policy is a policy that we added with last year's 
handbook.  It provides a shared leave pool for an employee who has a personal 
circumstance, typically medical, where they utilize all of their own sick time and 
vacation time and would need to receive donated time from other employees. The 
City attorneys recommended language be added that would capture the use of 
information that if that employee discloses something through the process, it would 
become part of their employees file.  They also recommended we strike some 
language that referred to HIPAA privacy because those rules only apply in a medical 
setting, so using that language is irrelevant in this case. We will still protect 
employee information. 
 

Section 11-5 –Shared Leave Policy  
A. Purpose  
The purpose of this section is to establish a Shared Leave Program to provide 
additional paid leave to employees who are eligible to earn leave benefits who have 
exhausted all of the accrued leave time due to a serious personal or immediate 
family illness or injury which is life threatening, catastrophic or resulting in a 
permanent disability.  
 

B. Use of Information  
The Employee acknowledges that any information and documents presented to the 
City in support of an application for withdrawal from the Shared Leave Pool may be 
used by the City for any reasonable employment related matter.  
 

B.C. Definitions  
Shared Leave Pool Employee Pool – Defined as a City-wide pool which receives 
voluntary contributions of vacation or sick credits from employees eligible and 
converts it into leave credits to be used by eligible employees on behalf of 
themselves.  
 

Shared Leave Committee – The “Shared Leave Committee” is a City-wide committee 
appointed by the City Administrator based on employee applications. It is comprised 
of four (4) fulltime employees which must include a Human Resources 
representative.  
 
For the purposes of this policy the term “immediate family member” shall mean 
parent(s), Spouse or Significant other, child(ren) (including stepchild(ren) or foster 
child(ren). 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 10 

Donation of Vacation or Sick Time – Any employee that earns leave benefits is 
eligible to donate vacation or sick credits to the employee pool subject to the 
following conditions:  
1) Contributions must be of at least one hour and employee must maintain an 
accrual of at least 40 sick hours.  

2) Contributions will be converted to leave credits on an hour-for-hour basis.  

3) Contributions made cannot subsequently be returned to the employee.  

4) Employees may donate to the pool a maximum of 40 sick hours in any one 
calendar year.  

3)5) Employees may not donate to the pool after having been terminated, resigned 
or have given notice of his/her retirement.  

4)6) Employees may donate to the pool by submitting a Shared Leave Donations 
Form to their supervisor. Supervisors should submit the completed, approved form 
in order for the leave.  
 

Section 12-12 Paid Administrative Leave previously only applied in a scenario in 
which there was discipline. The recommended policy addition applies where 
administration direct staff not come to work, but employees will still be paid. This 
was identified due to the coronavirus response, where an employee was 
compensated when they do not actually come to work.  This should be used 
minimally and only with City Administrator and Mayor approval. This is not 
something that we anticipate would ever be widely used, but we want to make sure 
that there is a double approval process. 
 

Section 20-06 Employer-Issued Laptop Policy was added to acknowledge employee 
use of take-home technology.  With the coronavirus we realized we did not have a 
policy for employee use of City laptops. This policy ensures that it is clear to the 
employee that they are responsible for their City issued laptops. 
 

Section 20-6 Employer-Issued Laptop Policy  
At the discretion of the City Administrator, city employees may be issued one (1) 
laptop of the City’s choosing for use during working hours and/or after hours in the 
office or at the employees’ homes.  
 

Each person assigned a laptop is responsible for its proper care and use. Each 
employee will be responsible for replacement of the laptop or the deductible on 
damage or loss during non-working conditions. Loss or damage caused during 
normal working conditions other than gross neglect will be the responsibility of the 
City.  
 

Upon resignation, termination of employment, or at any time upon request, the 
employee will be asked to produce the equipment for return or inspection. 
Employees unable to present the equipment in good working condition within a 
reasonable time period (i.e., 24 hours) will bear the cost of a replacement. 
Employees who separate from employment with outstanding debts for equipment 
loss or unauthorized charges will be considered to have left employment on 



  Regular Session 

 Page 11 August 4, 2020 

unsatisfactory terms. Any outstanding debt will be deducted from the employee’s 
final paycheck.  
 

Any misuse or abuse of the laptop or this policy shall be subject to any discipline up 
to and including termination under this Employee Handbook. 
 
Section 20-8 Telecommuting Policy was added not just for the situation of 
coronavirus but if we have an employee that is wanting to use telecommuting or 
working from home on a regular basis.  This policy outlines how the employee would 
work through the process with Human Resources and their Department Director 
about what expectations are, what their hours might be, what their responsibilities 
are, and whether they have the kind of job that would apply to teleworking.  

Section 20-8 Telecommuting Policy 
General Information: The occasionally permits employees to telecommute when the 
employee’s 
Department Head, and City Administrator evaluates the telecommute request and 
approves it. When evaluating the request, the Department Head must determine 
that the employee can effectively perform the job duties of the position while 
telecommuting. The Department Head must also determine that the telecommuting 
arrangement conforms with applicable regulations and policies. 
 

Telecommuting may be appropriate for some employees and positions but not for 
others. Telecommuting is not an entitlement, it is not a Citywide benefit, and it in no 
way changes the terms and conditions of employment with the City. 
 

Telecommuting Definition: For the purpose of this policy, telecommuting refers to an 
arrangement where an employee occasionally or regularly works from home or from 
a location away from the normal workplace. 
 

Arrangements may be made on an as-needed basis for circumstances such as 
inclement weather, special projects, business travel, family and medical leave, and 
other temporary situations as deemed appropriate by the Department Head and 
City Administrator. 
All telecommuting arrangements are made on a case-by-case basis, focusing first 
on the business needs of the City. 
 

Eligibility: Individuals requesting telecommuting arrangements must be employed 
with the City for a minimum of 6 months of continuous, regular employment and 
must have a satisfactory performance record. This policy may apply in situations 
such as a pandemic or weather-related event. 
 

Before entering into any telecommuting arrangement, the employee and 
Department Head, with the assistance of Human Resources, will evaluate the 
suitability of such an arrangement, 
reviewing the following areas: 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 12 

 Employee suitability: The employee and Department Head will assess the 

needs and work habits of the employee. Considerations include how well the 

employee has demonstrated the kind of skills and work habits that working 

from home will require. 

 Job responsibilities: The employee and Department Head will discuss the job 

responsibilities and determine if the job is appropriate for a telecommuting 

arrangement. 

 Equipment needs, workplace design considerations and scheduling issues. 

 Department readiness for telecommuting: Ensure that the teleworking 

employee will continue to get work done effectively. Determine the following: 

o How will the Department Head and co-workers stay informed 
about the employee’s productivity? 

o How will the department and employee communicate? 
o When is in-person attendance required? 

 Other practical details, including technology access, equipment needs, time 

and leave accounting, and any safety concerns. 
 

Related policies and practices: Both Department Heads and employees must 
understand and comply with the following policies: 

 Security: Consistent with the City’s expectations of information security for 

employees working at the office, telecommuting employees will be expected to 

ensure the protection of confidential city information, including, but not limited 

to: 

o   Personal and financial information belonging to city residents and 
employees 

o   Other confidential information belonging to, or in the care of, the City 
o   Certain documents containing sensitive information should not be 

removed from the business office, including but not limited to: protected 
health information; financial records belonging to the City, employees, or 
residents; or other sensitive information as determined by the Department 
Head and/or City Administrator. 

 

 Public Records Disclosure: The work employees do while telecommuting remains 

subject to City and other applicable regulations including the Missouri Sunshine 

Law, regardless of the use of a City-issued device, or a personal device. 

 Overtime eligible employees: For non-exempt employees, work performed off 

site is compensable and subject to Fair Labor Standard Act (FLSA) overtime 

regulations. It is the responsibility of the employee to accurately track and 

report their time worked. 

Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the immediate 
termination of the telecommuting agreement. 

 Workers’ Compensation: Telecommuting employees are covered by workers’ 

compensation for job-related injuries that occur in the course and scope of 



  Regular Session 

 Page 13 August 4, 2020 

employment. When the telecommute site is in the home, workers’ compensation 

does not cover injuries that are not job related. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker said that the Employee Handbook changes would come 

back before the Board in September to be implemented on November 1. 
 

3. Discussion of FY21 Compensation Plan 
Nickie Lee, Assistant City Administrator, stated this is a very similar process and 
timeline to the handbook updates. This is a review that is done annually with the 
budget process where we review every position description and the pay scale and 
pay plan. That way we can ensure when presenting the budget that it reflects some 
of the best practices and encompasses any changes that we may need to our 
positions for that coming year. 
 

One of the most important things that staff does is look to see what our peers are 
doing for the upcoming budget year.  Staff makes phone calls to cities in the 
northland, look across the state and at cities all across the Kansas City metro. Not 
only does staff talk to them about their proposed salary increases to employees but 
discuss actual pay scales to make sure that our positions are in line with their 
positions.   
 

This year there are a lot of differences especially related to coronavirus.  Staff found 
that not few communities are including COLA or cost-of-living. A lot of this is due to 
the .4% CPI growth for the past 12 months.  Previously we did a cost of living 
increase for all employees in the fall. Last year we did not do across the board 
increases but tied any increases to merit instead.  What we did do was increase the 
salary ranges to keep up with that cost of living, so even if the employee pay was 
not increased, we wanted the range to increase to keep up with the market.   We 
found that since CPI is averaging less than 1%, we are not proposing the changes 
be adjusted.  
 

Last year and the previous year we started a new evaluation process for employees. 
In the spring, every employee is evaluated.  Employees increases are based 
performance evaluations. This has been a very positive process and it has put a lot 
of accountability on employees and on departments heads to recognize the pay 
increase based on merit.   
 

Staff is recommending another 3% merit pool in this year’s budget. This is 
consistent with what we see in peer organizations across the Kansas City 
metropolitan area.   
 

Nickie then explained a couple department specific changes, one would be that we 
are not proposing any kind of across the board range adjustments.  There are 
several positions in the organization that we did adjust the range but not their pay 
based on a couple of key metrics, one would be that we are making sure that 
employees that are in positions similar to other positions in the city have similar pay 
bands.  Staff has found that before you might have a crew leader in one department 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 14 

whose pay range was completely different than a crew leader in another 
department.  Staff is making an effort that we have consistency and compensation 
based on employee responsibilities.  The one key area where we found that really 
varied was in the department directors.  For example, you might look at the police 
chief minimum and maximum were around $1,000 off from another department 
director.  Staff has synced up a couple of different bands of Department Directors to 
ensure that the dollar amounts matched.  Staff wants to make sure in going forward 
that those also sync up so that there is some consistency and fairness across the 
organization.  
 

There were several other positions where staff did increase the maximum because 
we found that those maximums were arbitrarily low compared to similar positions in 
other departments.  In all the situations she just explained, none of those employees 
were recommended to receive any kind of increase for the adjustment, it is just 
widening the range. 
 

The merit adjustment in the budget process will have a $42,000 impact to the 
General Fund and a little over $12,000 to the Utility Funds.   We do have some 
employees who if they are at the top of their pay range may receive a lump-sum 
payment instead of full 3%.  That is only if they receive the successful rating or 
above on their evaluation process.   
 

Staff is recommending one change in the Development Department.  Staff found in 
looking at other organizations and looking at what our employee responsibilities are, 
other cities with a similar position called the position a permit technician.  This 
position title really better captures the needs of our citizens for the Development 
Department.   
 

In the rest of the Compensation Plan there are some minor changes to position 
descriptions.  They might be modifying requirements for the job or a technicality in 
the kind of code that we use.   
 

Nickie explained that for now staff has left the Police Department position 
descriptions as is.  Staff plans to address those in the fall when we bring forward the 
discussion of the Police Department as a whole.  
 

Mayor ProTem Bloemker thanked staff for their work on these items.  
 

4. Adjourn 
Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared the Work Session adjourned at 6:20 p.m. and the 
Board proceeded with the Regular Session. 
 
 
__________________________                    _________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk                          Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro Tem 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 15 August 4, 2020 

Board of Aldermen July 21, 2020 Regular Session Minutes 
 

  SMITHVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
July 21, 2020    7:00 p.m. or immediately following the Work Session 

City Hall Council Chambers 
 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this meeting was held via teleconference.     
    
Mayor Pro Tem, Aldermen and staff attended via Zoom meeting.  The meeting 
was streamed live on the city’s FaceBook page.  Attendance in person by 
members of the public was not permitted. 

 

1. Call to Order 
     Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker, present, called the meeting to order at 6:21 p.m.  A 

quorum of the Board was present via Zoom meeting: Steve Sarver, Marv Atkins, 
John Chevalier, Dan Ulledahl and Melissa Wilson.  Mayor Boley was absent.  Staff 
present via Zoom: Cynthia Wagner, Nickie Lee, Chuck Soules, Chief Jason Lockridge, 
Jack Hendrix, Dan Toleikis, Matt Denton and Linda Drummond.   
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance lead by Alderman Ulledahl 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
• Minutes 

o July 7, 2020 Board of Alderman Work Session Minutes 
o July 7, 2020 Board of Alderman Regular Session Minutes 

 

• Finance Report   
o Financial Report for July  

 

No discussion. 
 

Alderman Sarver moved to approve the consent agenda.  Alderwoman Wilson 
seconded the motion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  The Mayor Pro Tem declared the consent 
agenda approved. 
 

REPORTS FROM OFFICERS AND STANDING COMMITTEES 
  

4. Committee Reports 
Alderwoman Wilson reported on the July 7 Planning and Zoning Commission.  She 
stated that it was shared we have 25 single family residential permits year-to-date, 
that number is way down.  There is a lot of activity this year on the commercial side, 
Porter's is targeting hopefully the middle of October to be open and Price Chopper 
may be a little bit behind that there are some timing issues. The Herzog Foundation 
could possibly bring something before the Planning Commission in September. 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 16 

    

5. City Administrator’s Report 
Cynthia reported that she had some follow up information on items included in the 
packet and a couple of new items to report on.  She acknowledged and thanked the 
extra efforts of our water department staff for their work last week in response to a 
water line break on the north end of town.  She said that with the significant amount 
of rainfall we had it made locating the leak difficult and when the leak was finally 
found it was under a creek.  It was a tremendous amount of work and a long day 
for staff and we appreciate their efforts. 
 

Included in the packet is a report from Chuck Soules, Public Works Director, on the 
closing out of the pump station project.  She asked that if the Board had any 
questions about the that please let staff know. 
 

Cynthia reminded everyone to RSVP to attend the Comprehensive Plan Focus Group 
meetings next week.  There will hybrid meetings throughout the week Monday 
through Thursday, starting at 4:00 p.m. and should be wrapped up by 6:00 p.m.  
She said she believes there is actually about an hour-and-a-half agenda. We will 
offer Zoom opportunities or in person at the High School in the Performing Arts 
Center.  For those who do attend at the high school, masks and social distancing will 
be required based on Clay County Public Health Center’s recommendations. 
 

Monday, July 27 - Housing and Neighborhood Options 
Tuesday, July 28 - Business and Economic Development  
Wednesday, July 29 - Recreation and Connectivity 
Thursday, July 30 - Small-town Feel and Sense of Community 
 

Cynthia stated that she and Jack Hendrix, Development Director, had 
communications with the Corps of Engineers about the proposed annexation of  
Smith’s Fork Park. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 17 August 4, 2020 

Cynthia said that after discussion with the Board in June, she sent a letter to the 
Corp of Engineers to begin the process to annex Smith’s Fork Park.  Discussion 
today expands the potential annexation area. The expanded map area shows that it 
includes not only Smith’s Fork Park, but also the control tower at the dam, the 
Visitor Center, Litton Way, the Overlook and the maintenance shop.  She explained 
that the Corps is looking to expand law enforcement support to their Park Rangers.  
She said with Board approval, staff will send the map to the Corp of Engineers along 
with hard copy of the letter that she emailed to them earlier, they will then forward 
it up their chain of command for review.  The Corps will be recommending that we 
provide law enforcement assistance.  Laura Vacca, with the Corps of Engineers, has 
indicated that we may have a response from the Corps for additional maintenance 
on the part of the city for the tow road and the parking lots.  Cynthia said that 
would be something that we can look at in the future, but she believes that is 
probably a fair trade off.  
 

Reminders for the Board: 
August 3 there is a Board and School District joint meeting. 
 

August 4 Board of Alderman Meeting will be held as a hybrid meeting.  Board 
members who wish to meet in the Council Chamber may, others join meet via Zoom.  
Masks and social distancing will be required. The new sound system will not be in 
but the bid is scheduled to be awarded at that meeting. 

 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 

6. Bill No. Bill No. 2864-20, Zoning 2412 NE 157th Terrace to R-1B – 1st 
Reading  

  Alderman Sarver moved to approve Bill No. 2864-20, to the zoning of 2412 NE 157th 
Terrace, Lakeside Crossing that was recently annexed into the City Limits, to R-1B.  
The initial zoning needs to be set by the City.  1st reading by title only. Alderman 
Atkins seconded the motion. 
 

No discussion. 
 

Upon roll call vote via teleconference: 
Alderman Sarver – Aye, Alderwoman Wilson – Aye, Alderman Atkins – Aye, 
Alderman Ulledahl – Aye, Alderman Chevalier – Aye, Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker – 
Aye. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared Bill No. 
2864-20 approved. 
 

7. Resolution 799, Hazardous Mitigation Plan 
Alderman Atkins moved to approve Resolution 799, to adopt the 2020 Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan required by FEMA. Alderwoman Wilson 
seconded the motion. 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 18 

No discussion. 
 
Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared Resolution 
799 approved. 

 

8. Resolution 800, Award Bid No. 20-07, East Main Street Trail 
Alderman Chevalier moved to approve Resolution 800, to award Bid No. 20-07 and 
authorize and direct the Mayor Pro-Tem to enter into an agreement with Amino 
Brothers Co., Inc for the amount of $1,297,786.10 and authorize a 
contingency/force account in an amount of $50,000.  Alderwoman Wilson seconded 
the motion. 
 

No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared Resolution 
800 approved. 
 

9. Resolution 801, Assessment of Utility Late Fees 
Alderman Sarver moved to approve Resolution 801, approving the reinstatement of 
the application of delinquent charges and continued suspension of discontinuance of 
water service.  Alderwoman Wilson seconded the motion. 
 

 No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared Resolution 
801 approved. 

 

10. Resolution 802, Nehemiah Festival 2020 
Alderman Chevalier moved to approve Resolution 802, authorizing, and directing the 
Mayor Pro Tem to execute an agreement with Grace Community Church for use of 
Smith’s Fork Park to host a music festival.  Alderman Sarver seconded the motion. 
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker asked if they would get a refund if they had to cancel? 
 

Cynthia said that they would. 
 

Public Comment 
David Lin spoke to the Board about how he liked the agreement this year and 
explained how they had used an agreement with the City in the very first years.  He 
said this is the 14th year for this event.  He said that this agreement really clarifies a 
lot of the things that they lost in the last few years when the City changed just to 
the Facility Use Application.  He explained that in the last few years they were able 
to ask for the Economic Development Event Assistance, but this year there were 
some timing issues and they missed out on the assistance.  Mr. Lin said they always 
want to try to get the community more involved in this and he is appealing to the 
Board to consider possibly considering being a co-sponsor for the event.  He also 
said that City staff had been very good to work with. 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 19 August 4, 2020 

No further discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared Resolution 
802 approved. 

 

11. Resolution 803, City Hall Improvement Contract Addendum No. 1 
Alderman Chevalier moved to approve Resolution 803, to approve Addendum No. 1 
to the contract with Bruner Contracting Co., LLC for an additional amount of $5,168.  
Alderman Atkins seconded the motion. 

  

 No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared Resolution 
803 approved. 

 

12. Resolution 804-805, CARES Act Funding 
Approve Resolutions related to CARES Act Funding. 
 

A. Resolution 804, Award Business Grants 
 Alderman Sarver moved to approve Resolution 804, to authorize distribution of 

the small business grants as recommended by Clay County EDC and reviewed by 
the Board of Aldermen.  Alderman Ulledahl seconded the motion. 

  
Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker thanked Clay County Economic Development 
Committee for their help with the process. 
 

    Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker declared 
Resolution 804 approved. 

 

B. Resolution 805, Award Bid No. 20-09, Touchless Fixtures 
 Alderman Chevalier moved to approve Resolution 805, to award Bid No. 20-09 to 

Lexington Plumbing and authorize and direct the Mayor Pro-Tem to execute an 
agreement in an amount not to exceed $124,000.  Alderman Ulledahl seconded 
the motion.  
 

No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 805 
approved. 
 

13. Resolution 806, Addendum to the City Administrator’s Contract 
 Alderman Sarver moved to approve Resolution 806, to approve the addendum to the 

contract with Cynthia Wagner for services as City Administrator based on the review 
conducted by the Board of Aldermen.  Alderwoman Wilson seconded the motion 
 

No discussion. 
 

Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries.  Mayor Boley declared Resolution 806 approved. 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 20 

OTHER MATTERS BEFORE THE BOARD 
   

14. Public Comment 
None 

 

15. New Business from the Floor 
 None 
 

16. Adjourn 
 Alderman Sarver moved to adjourn.  Alderman Atkins seconded the motion. 

              
Ayes – 6, Noes – 0, motion carries via teleconference. Mayor Pro Tem Bloemker 
declared the regular session adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 
 
                                                                                         
_________________________         __________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk          Jeff Bloemker, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 21 August 4, 2020 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

   
 

City Administrator’s Report 
 

July 29, 2020 
 
Updates on Main Street Water Line and Other Repairs 
Please see attached memo from Public Works Director Chuck Soules regarding status 
and recommendations relating to improvements on the east Main Street corridor.  Work 
in this area will continue over the next several months as the Main Street Trail and 
Streetscape East projects proceed. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Update 
Four separate focus group sessions have occurred this week, each with very good 
participation.  The consulting team will take this informaton to create follow up 
“homework” for the community – providing opportunities to respond to scenarios, 
provide density preferences, etc.   
 
The next session of public imput will be late in August, with Zoom and in person 
opportunities again.   
 
Summaries of the work and homework/community follow-up can all be found on the 
portal:  https://lab.future-iq.com/city-of-smithville-comprehensive-planning-process-
2020/ 
 
Certified Municipal Clerk 
City Clerk Linda Drummond received notification this week that she has fulfilled all the 
requirements to achieve Certified Municipal Clerk status with the International Institute 
of Municipal Clerks.  Linda is already a Missouri Registered City Clerk.   
 

 

 

https://lab.future-iq.com/city-of-smithville-comprehensive-planning-process-2020/
https://lab.future-iq.com/city-of-smithville-comprehensive-planning-process-2020/


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 22 

 

 
  

Date: July 28, 2020 

To: Cynthia Wagner, City Administrator 

From Charles Soules, Director of PW 

Subject: 
Main Street Water Line 

 
Menke Excavation is currently installing a new 8-inch water main on Main Street and 
Liberty Drive. The main is complete and there are approximately 40 service lines that 
will be replaced and connected to the new main. As part of the contract, Menke will 
repair the street with a 7-inch concrete cap and two-inch asphalt surface. The waterline 
is on the south side of Main Street under the pavement and the new water services will 
make additional cuts in the street.  
 
The Main Street Trail Project is also getting ready to begin. With this project, there are 
four cross-road pipes of varying sizes (24 inch to 36 inch) that will be replaced and 
Main Street will have additional patching completed.  
 
Additionally, in the next couple months we will bid the Streetscape Phase II project, 
which includes milling and overlaying Main Street from Commercial to Liberty. 
 
I am recommending that instead of having Menke restore Main Street by squaring up 
the trench lines and installing a two-inch asphalt surface, that we fill the excavations 
with concrete. The surface would be level and drivable (not the loose temporary rock 
that currently exists). The appearance would look “patchy”, but the asphalt patches 
would also have a similar appearance. When both the Main Street Waterline and the 
Trail Projects are complete, the Streetscape project will mill and overlay the street 
providing a uniform and consistent appearance (anticipated next spring). By doing this 
we would not be tearing out repairs just completed. There is a cost savings of 
approximately $25,000. The savings is derived from Menke not having to square up the 
excavations nor have an asphalt sub-contractor come to town to complete this asphalt 
surface (which is a small quantity). The Streetscape project is going to mill and overlay 
Main Street, next Spring. 
 
Although there is a savings to the waterline project, I would also recommend that we 
extend the mill and overlay on the Streetscape project to Lakeland/Helvey Park Drive 
(which is where the waterline ties in) and include Liberty Drive. This would completely 
resurface the area that the waterline project has disturbed. 
 
Please let me know if there are any questions. 

STAFF REPORT 



  Regular Session 

 Page 23 August 4, 2020 

ZONING 2412 NE 157TH TERRACE 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: July 21, 2020 Department: Development 

Agenda Item: Bill No. 2864-20, Zoning 2412 NE 157th Terrace, 2nd Reading 

Summary: 

Approving this ordinance would set the initial zoning on this property to R-1B.  

Purpose: 

The property was annexed on July 7 by Ordinance 3065-20 and the initial zoning 
must be set.  A public hearing before the Planning Commission was held on July 14, 
2020 for setting the initial zoning on the property.  The Planning Commission 
recommended to set the zoning as R-1B, to match the adjacent zoning classifications.   
 
The property is a single-family residential home in the Lakeside Crossing subdivision.  
It was one of 11 lots not inside the city limits, but with the annexation last meeting, 
there are now only 10.  
 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: Complies 

Economic Development Plan: n/a 

Parks Master Plan: n/a 

Strategic Plan: Complies 

Capital Improvement Plan: n/a 

Budget: n/a 

Legislative History: 

Annexed on July 7, 2020 via Ord. 3065-20 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve Bill No. 2864-20 for Second Reading by Title Only to set the 
initial zoning of 2412 NE 157th Terrace. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: Findings of Fact 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 24 

FINDING OF FACTS AND  
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
 

Applicant:  Judith Whaley   
 
Land Use Proposed: R-1B 
 
Zoning:  County Single Family 
 
Property Location: 2412 NE 157th Ter. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 400.560(C) of the Smithville Code, the Planning 
Commission does hereby make the following findings of fact based upon the testimony and 
evidence presented in a public hearing of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City 
of Smithville, held on July 14, 2020, and presents these findings to the Board of Aldermen, 
with its’ recommendations on the application. 
 
Finding of Facts 
 
1. Character of the neighborhood. 

The surrounding area is single family residential housing in a standard   
 subdivision. 
 
2. Consistency with the City's Comprehensive Plan and ordinances. 

The existing Comprehensive Plan was approved on October 6, 2005 and calls for low 
density housing. It complies with the plan.  

 
3. Adequacy of public utilities and other needed public services. 
 The lot is in a fully completed subdivision with all utilities and public services.  
 
4. Suitability of the uses to which the property has been restricted under its existing 

zoning. 
 The current use is single family residential formerly outside the city limits.  
 
5. Length of time the property has remained vacant as zoned. 
 The property was constructed in the county but had never previously annexed while 

the bulk of the lots in the subdivision were annexed over 15 years ago.   
 
6. Compatibility of the proposed district classification with nearby properties. 
 The proposed district matches the adjacent existing uses. 
 
7. The extent to which the zoning amendment may detrimentally affect nearby 

property. 
 No detriment is anticipated. 
  



  Regular Session 

 Page 25 August 4, 2020 

8. Whether the proposed amendment provides a disproportionately great loss to the 
individual landowners nearby relative to the public gain. 

 No loss to landowners is expected. 
  
9. That in rendering this Finding of Fact, testimony at the public hearing on July 14, 

2020, has been taken into consideration as well as the documents provided. 
 
Recommendation of the Planning Commission 
 
Based on the foregoing findings of fact, we conclude that: 
 
A. This application and the Zoning of this property from County Single Family 

Residential to R-1B is governed by Section 400.620 of the zoning ordinance of 
Smithville, Missouri. 

 
B. The proposed zoning is compatible with the factors set out in Section 400.560(C) of 

the zoning ordinance. 
 
C. The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Smithville, Missouri recommends 

approval of zoning the property to R-1B. 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 26 

BILL NO.  2864-20  ORDINANCE NO.  ________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS 
OF CERTAIN LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI. 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Smithville received an application for annexation on May 7, 
2020 for property located at 2412 NE 157th Terrace; and 
 

WHEREAS, after the property was annexed, the City is required to designate the initial 
zoning of newly annexed property, so a Public Hearing was conducted before the 
Planning Commission on July 14, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission presented its’ findings to the Board of Aldermen 
and recommended approval of the initial zoning for the property as R-1B. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, THAT; 
 

Section 1. Having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and 
proper notice having been given and public hearing held as provided by law, and under 
the authority of and subject to the provisions of the zoning ordinances of the City of 
Smithville, Missouri, by a majority board vote, the zoning classification(s) or district(s) 
of the lands legally described hereby are changed as follows: 
 

The property legally described as:  Lot 11, Lakeside Crossing 1st Plat, a subdivision in 
Clay County Missouri is hereby set as R-1B.   
 

Section 2.  Upon the taking effect of this ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be 
entered and shown upon the “Official Zoning Map” previously adopted and said Official 
Zoning Map is hereby reincorporated as a part of the zoning ordinance as amended. 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after the 
approval. 
 

PASSED THIS __________ DAY OF __________, 20_____ 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    7/21/2020 
 

Second Reading  / / 



  Regular Session 

 Page 27 August 4, 2020 

Exhibit A 
 

 
 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 28 

RESCEND ORDINANCE 3062-20 PARKS AND STORMWATER TAX 

 City of Smithville 

Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: 
Parks & Recreation 
Public Works (Streets) 
Finance 

Agenda Item: 
Bill No. 2865-20, Rescinding Ordinance 3062-20 and Authorizing the 
City to Impose a Parks & Stormwater Sales Tax  

Summary: 

Ordinance 3062-20 was approved by the Board of Aldermen at its June 16 Regular 
Session and authorized the City to impose a Parks and Stormwater Sales Tax in the 
amount of one-half of one percent until December 31, 2040 in accordance with the 
June 2, 2020 Municipal Election. The December 31, 2040 date included in the 
Ordinance needs to be corrected to September 30, 2040. 

Purpose: 

The ballot language identified a tax collection period of 20 years from the date on 
which the tax is first imposed. By Sections 32.085 and 32.087, RSMo., the tax starts the 
first day of the second quarter following receipt by the Missouri Department of Revenue. 
Ordinance 3062-20 was approved on June 16, 2020 and sent to the Missouri 
Department of Revenue the following day. The first day of the second quarter following 
that notice is October 31, 2020. Therefore, the end date will be twenty years later, or 
September 30, 2040. However, Ordinance 3062-20 incorrectly listed an ending date of 
December 31, 2040. 
 
Staff checked with the Missouri Department of Revenue on the language in Ordinance 
2998-18, Imposing a Capital Improvement Sales Tax until December 31, 2038, which 
went into effect October 1, 2018. However, the ballot language for that tax specifically 
listed December 31, 2038 as the ending date (as opposed to 20 years). This tax will 
essentially run for 20 years and 3 months, an no changes are necessary for the capital 
improvement sales tax. 
 
This Ordinance has been sponsored as an emergency ordinance by Mayor Boley in 
order to allow for submission of this revised Ordinance to the Missouri State 
Department of Revenue on August 5, 2020. 
 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: Significant Impact 

Economic Development Plan: Significant Impact 



  Regular Session 

 Page 29 August 4, 2020 

Parks Master Plan: Significant Impact 

Strategic Plan: Significant Impact 

Capital Improvement Plan: Significant Impact 

Budget: Significant Impact 

Legislative History: 

Municipal Elections are held every year, typically in April.  Due to Executive Order of 
Governor Mike Parson, the April 7, 2020 Municipal Elections were postponed to June 2, 
2020 in response to COVID-19. 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve Bill No. 2865-20, for first reading by title only.  If approved, a 
motion to approve Bill No. 2865-20 for second reading by title only. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other:   Ordinance 3062-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 30 

BILL NO. 2865-20 ORDINANCE NO. XXXX-20 
  
ORDINANCE RESCINDING ORDINANCE 3062-20 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
TO IMPOSE A PARKS & STORMWATER SALES TAX OF ONE-HALF PERCENT 
UNTIL SEPTEMBER 30, 2040 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDING FOR 
STORMWATER CONTROL AND LOCAL PARKS FOR THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, 
MISSOURI. 
  
WHEREAS, Smithville, Missouri (the “City”), is authorized under Section 94.577, RSMo 
(the “Act”), to impose a parks & stormwater sales tax of one-half of one percent until 
September 30, 2040 upon retail sales under the provisions of Section 144.010 to 
144.525, RSMo, for the purpose of operating, maintaining, funding, and/or financing 
parks and recreation needs and stormwater control; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 3053-20 of the City (the “Authorizing Ordinance”), 
the Board of Aldermen ordered an election to be held in the City on June 2, 2020, for the 
purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the City the following question: 
 
 QUESTION 
 

Shall the City of Smithville, Missouri impose a sales 
tax of one-half of one percent for a period of twenty 
years from the date on which such tax is first imposed 
for the purpose of providing funding for storm water 
control and local parks for the City of Smithville, 
Missouri? 

 
and the votes cast at said election were duly canvassed as provided by law, and it was 
found and declared that a majority of the qualified voters of the City voting at said 
election on said question voted in favor of the imposition of said capital improvement 
sales tax; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 3062-20 incorrectly identified December 31, 2040 as the period 
ending date for collection of the tax; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF 
SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT Ordinance 3062-20 is hereby rescinded; and 
 
Section 1. With the approval on June 2, 2020 by a majority of the qualified voters 

voting thereon of the above-referenced question, the Board of Aldermen 
hereby authorizes the City to impose a parks and stormwater sales tax of 
one-half of one percent until September 30, 2040 for the purpose of 



  Regular Session 

 Page 31 August 4, 2020 

operating, maintaining, funding, and/or financing parks and recreation 
needs and stormwater control; and 

 
Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby ordered to forward to the Department of Revenue, 

by United States registered or certified mail, a certified copy of this 
Ordinance and the Authorizing Ordinance and certifications of the election 
results on the question at the April 2, 2020. The parks and stormwater 
sales tax imposed by this Ordinance shall continue to be imposed until 
September 30, 2040, as provided by the Act, by Sections 32.085 and 
32.087, RSMo., as amended, and by all other applicable laws, and shall be 
used for the purposes hereinabove authorized. 

 
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN FOR THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, 
MISSOURI THIS 4TH DAY OF AUGUST 2020. 
 
 
 
[SEAL]  
 
 
 
      
________________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 
 
 
First Reading:  08/04/2020 
 
Second Reading:  08/04/2020 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 32 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 33 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 34 

RE-ADOPT THE CODE OF ETHICS 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: Administration 

Agenda Item: Bill No. 2866-20, Re-adopt the Code of Ethics - First Reading 

Summary:   

Every year the Board is required by state law to review and re-adopt its Code of 
Ethics with election of new Board members. The present form of the Code of Ethics is 
included in the packet and recommended for re-adoption. 

 

Purpose:   

 To maintain the integrity of City government and comply with state law. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: No Impact 

Economic Development Plan: No Impact 

Parks Master Plan: No Impact 

Strategic Plan: No Impact 

Capital Improvement Plan: No Impact 

Budget:   No Impact 

Legislative History: 

 

Suggested Action:   

A motion to approve Bill No. 2866-20, Re-adoption of the Code of Ethics, for first 
reading by title only. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: RSMO Section 135 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 35 August 4, 2020 

BILL NO.   2866-20                                 ORDINANCE NO.   
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 135 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
WHEREAS Section 105.485.4 RSMo allows political subdivisions the option of adopting 
their own method of disclosing conflicts of interest and personal financial disclosure. 
State laws require that this ordinance/resolution be adopted biennially by September 
15th; and 
 
WHEREAS the City currently provides by ordinance in Chapter 135 for procedures for 
compliance with ethics requirements; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Chapter 135 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Smithville, Missouri is 
hereby deleted in its entirety, and a new Chapter 135 is hereby enacted, to be read and 
numbered as follows: 

CHAPTER 135:  CODE OF ETHICS 

SECTION 135.010: DECLARATION OF POLICY 
It is the policy of the City of Smithville, Missouri, to uphold, promote and demand 
ethical conduct from its elected and appointed public officials (hereinafter "public 
officials"). The citizens and businesses of the City are entitled to have fair, ethical and 
accountable local government. The City recognizes the importance of codifying and 
making known to the general public the ethical principles that guide the work of public 
officials. Public officials of the City are to maintain the highest standards of personal 
integrity, truthfulness and fairness in carrying out their public duties. In order to fulfill 
this mission, the City hereby adopts a code of ethics for public officials to assure public 
confidence in the integrity of local government and its effective and fair operation. 
Unless specifically defined otherwise, the terms used in Chapter 135 shall be defined as 
set forth in Section 105.450 R.S.Mo et seq. as now adopted or hereinafter amended.  
 
SECTION 135.020: RESPONSIBILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICE 
Stewardship of the public interest shall be the public official's primary concern, working 
for the common good of the citizens of the City and avoiding actions that are 
inconsistent with the best interests of the City. All persons, claims and transactions 
coming before the Board of Aldermen or any City board, commission or committee shall 
be assured of fair and equal treatment.  
 
SECTION 135.030: COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 
Public officials are agents of public purpose and hold office for the benefit of the public. 
They are bound to uphold the laws of the nation, State and the City and to carry out 
impartially these laws in the performance of their public duties to foster respect for all 

http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000485.HTM


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 36 

government. These laws include, but are not limited to, the United States and Missouri 
Constitutions, the laws of the State of Missouri and City ordinances.  
 

SECTION 135.040: CONDUCT OF OFFICIALS 
The professional and personal conduct of public officials shall be above reproach and 
shall avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Public officials shall refrain from 
abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the character or motives of 
the Mayor, other members of the Board of Aldermen, boards, commissions, 
committees, City staff and the public. 
 

SECTION 135.050: PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES 
A. Public officials shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and rules 
of order as established by the Board of Aldermen, boards, commissions and committees 
governing the deliberation of public policy issues, meaningful involvement of the public 
and implementation of policy decisions of the Board of Aldermen by City staff. 
 

SECTION 135.060: PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Public officials shall prepare themselves for the public issues, listening courteously and 
attentively to all public discussion before the body and focus on the business at hand. 
Public officials shall refrain from interrupting other speakers, making personal 
comments not relevant to the business of the body or otherwise interfere with the 
orderly conduct of meetings.  
 

SECTION 135.070: DECISION BASED ON MERIT 
Public officials shall base their decisions on the merits and the substance at hand.  
 

SECTION 135.080: COMMUNICATION 
Unless otherwise prohibited by law, privilege or the rules of evidence, Public officials 
shall publicly share with the Board of Aldermen or any boards, commissions and/or 
committees of the City any substantive information that is relevant to a matter under 
consideration by said entity of which they have knowledge from any source.  
 

SECTION 135.090: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
A. In order to assure independence and impartiality on behalf of the common good, 

public officials shall not use their official positions to influence government decisions 
in which they have a Substantial Interest or personal relationship, or which may 
reasonably give rise to the appearance of a conflict of interest or impropriety.  

 

B. The Mayor or any member of the Board of Aldermen who has a Substantial Interest, 
in any bill shall disclose on the records of the Board of Aldermen the nature of his or 
her interest and shall disqualify himself or herself from participation in deliberation 
or voting on any matters relating to this interest. 

 

C. Public officials should avoid action, whether or not specifically prohibited, which 
might reasonably result in or create the appearance of using their public office for 
private gain.  



  Regular Session 

 Page 37 August 4, 2020 

SECTION 135.100: GIFTS, GRATUITIES AND FAVORS 
Public officials shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 105, RSMo relating to the 
acceptance and reporting of gifts, gratuities and favors. 
 
SECTION 135.110: CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION 
Unless approved by the Board of Aldermen, no elected or appointed Public Official shall 
disclose or make public any information which is otherwise closed to the Public pursuant 
to §610.021 R.S.Mo. or otherwise protected from disclosure by Missouri or Federal law.  
No Public Official shall use or provide information obtained as a result of his or her 
position for the benefit of the Public Official or the recipient in an advantages position 
over the general public.   
 
SECTION 135.120: USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES 
A. Unless specifically permitted by City policy, the use of City facilities, equipment, 
vehicles, supplies, on-duty personnel or other goods or services is limited to City 
business. Public resources may not be used for private gain or personal purposes 
except on the same basis that they are otherwise normally available to the public. 
Normal rental or usage fees may not be waived except in accordance with City policy. 
B. A public official shall not utilize the City's name, letterhead, logo or seal for the 
purpose of endorsing any political candidate, business, commercial product or service. 
  
SECTION 135.130: ADVOCACY 
As nonpartisan stewards of the public interest, the Mayor and members of the Board of 
Aldermen shall not appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the 
Board of Aldermen or any other board, commission, committee or proceeding in the 
City. Public officials of boards, commissions and committees shall not appear before 
their own bodies or before the Board of Aldermen on behalf of the private interests of 
third parties on matter related to the areas of service of their bodies. Public officials 
shall represent the official policies or positions of the City to the best of their abilities 
when designated as delegates for this purpose. When representing their individual 
opinions and positions, public officials shall explicitly state that they do not represent 
their body or the City and they shall not give the inference that they do.  
 
SECTION 135.140: POLICY ROLE OF MEMBERS 
Public officials shall respect and adhere to the City Administrator form of government as 
outlined in the ordinances, policies and procedures with respect to the City 
Administrator's relationship to the Board of Aldermen. In this structure, the Board of 
Aldermen determine the policies of the City with the advice, information and analysis 
provided by the public, boards, commissions, committees and City staff. Individual 
Board of Aldermen members shall not, except at the direction of the entire Board of 
Alderman, have any role in the administrative functions of the City or the professional 
duties of City staff or the implementation of City policy or decisions. This prohibition 
shall not apply to the Mayor, nor the Mayor Pro Tem acting in the Mayor's absence.  



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 38 

Additionally, this prohibition shall not apply to any individual Board of Aldermen's ability 
to obtain information reasonably necessary to perform his or her duties.  
 
SECTION 135.150: INDEPENDENCE OF BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND 
COMMITTEES 
The value of independent advice and recommendations of boards, commissions and 
committees to the public decision-making process is of such significance that members 
of the Board of Aldermen should refrain from using their positions to influence the 
deliberations or outcomes of board, commission and committee proceedings.  This 
prohibition is not meant to include the actions of any Board of Aldermen when acting as 
a member of any such committee. 
 
SECTION 135.160: BEHAVIOR  
All City elected and appointed officials shall conduct themselves in a professional 
business manner and should refrain from the public use of profane or offensive 
language so as to reflect well on the City.   
 
SECTION 135.170: POSITIVE WORKPLACE ENVIRONMENT 
Public officials shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive workplace 
environment for the City employees and for citizens and businesses dealing with the 
City.  
 
SECTION 135.180: IMPLEMENTATION 
The code of ethics for public officials of the City is intended to be self-enforcing. 
Therefore, it becomes most effective when public officials are thoroughly familiar with it 
and embrace its provisions. For this reason, these ethical standards shall be included in 
the regular orientation of candidates for Board of Aldermen, newly elected officials and 
appointed members of all boards, commissions and committees of the City. 
 
The code of ethics shall be reviewed biannually by the Board of Aldermen. 
Recommendations received from the review shall be considered by the Board of 
Aldermen.  
 
SECTION 135.190: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 

A. The City's code of ethics expresses standards of ethical conduct expected for the 
public officials of the Board of Aldermen, boards, commissions and committees. 
Public officials themselves have the primary responsibility to assure that ethical 
standards are understood and met and that the public can continue to have full 
confidence in the integrity of the government. 
 

B. A person making a complaint against a public official for violation of this policy 
shall submit the complaint, in writing, to the Mayor who shall conduct or cause to 
be conducted an investigation as he or she reasonably believes is warranted by 
the complaint.  The Mayor may request the aid of the City Attorney, Police or 
other City employees with said investigation.  The Mayor may choose to 



  Regular Session 

 Page 39 August 4, 2020 

disregard any anonymous complaint or complaint not based on personal or 
credible evidence as determined in the sole discretion of the Mayor.  If the Mayor 
determines that the complaint may warrant disciplinary action by the Board of 
Alderpersons, the Mayor shall cause a special session of the Board of 
Alderpersons to be held for the purpose of conducting a hearing with regard to 
said allegations/complaint.  Said hearing to be conducted pursuant to the 
Missouri Administrative procedures act §536.010 R.S.Mo et seq. as now adopted 
or hereinafter amended.  
 

C. Any complaint concerning the Mayor shall be made to the Mayor Pro Tem who 
shall have the same authority as the Mayor set forth above when reviewing any 
such   complaint.   
 

D. The Board of Aldermen shall make a final determination upon a majority vote of 
all members, except for any member of the Board of Aldermen which is the 
subject of a complaint.  The standard of proof required for a final determination 
of violation of this policy (unless otherwise required by law) shall be a 
preponderance of the evidence. At the discretion of the Board of Aldermen, 
sanctions may include private or public reprimand or censure, removal or 
exclusion from leadership positions, the governing board, and other official 
positions or duties that do not conflict with Missouri Statutes.  
 

SECTION 135.210:     DISCLOSURE REPORTS 
Each elected official, the City Clerk, the City Administrator and the Chief Purchasing 
Officer (if some other individual) shall disclose the following information by May first 
(1st) regarding any such transactions which were engaged in during the previous 
calendar year: 

1. For such person, and all persons within the first (1st) degree of consanguinity or 
affinity of such person, the date and identities of the parties to each transaction 
with a total value in excess of five hundred dollars ($500.00), if any, that such 
person had with the political subdivision, and other than transfers for no 
consideration to the political subdivision; (if none, state none) and; 

 

2. The date and the identities of the parties to each transaction known to the 
person with a total value in excess of five hundred dollars ($500.00), if any, that 
any business entity in which such person had a substantial interest, had with the 
political subdivision, other than payment of any tax, fee or penalty due to the 
political subdivision or transactions involving payment for providing utility service 
to the political subdivision, and other than transfers for no consideration to the 
political subdivision; (if none state none); 
 

3.  The City Administrator, City Clerk and the Chief Purchasing officer also shall 
disclose by May first (1st) for the previous calendar year the following 
information: 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 40 

          a.   The name and address of each of the employers of such person from whom 
income of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or more was received during the 
year covered by the statement; 

          b.   The name and address of each sole proprietorship that he owned; the name, 
address and the general nature of the business conducted of each general 
partnership and joint venture in which he was a partner or participant; the 
name and address of each partner or co-participant for each partnership or 
joint venture unless such names and addresses are filed by the partnership 
or joint venture with the Secretary of State; the name, address and general 
nature of the business conducted of any closely held corporation or limited 
partnership in which the person owned ten percent (10%) or more of any 
class of the outstanding stock or limited partnership units; and the name of 
any publicly traded corporation or limited partnership that is listed on a 
regulated stock exchange or automated quotation system in which the 
person owned two percent (2%) or more of any class of outstanding stock, 
limited partnership units or other equity interests; 

          c.   The name and address of each corporation for which such person served in 

the capacity of a director, officer or receiver.   

SECTION 135.220:     FILING OF REPORTS 

The reports, in the attached format, shall be filed with the City Clerk and with the 
Missouri Ethics Commission.  The reports shall be available for public inspection and 
copying during normal business hours.   

SECTION 135.230:     WHEN FILED 

The financial interest statements shall be filed at the following times, but no person is 
required to file more than one (1) financial interest statement in any calendar year: 

     1.     Each person appointed to office shall file the statement within thirty (30) days 

of such appointment. 

     2.     Every other person required to file a financial interest statement shall file the 
statement annually not later than May first (1st) and December thirty-first 
(31st); provided that any member of the Board of Aldermen may supplement 
the financial interest statement to report additional interests acquired after 
December thirty-first (31st) of the covered year until the date of filing of the 
financial interest statement.   

SECTION 135.240:     FILING OF ORDINANCE 

The City Clerk shall send a certified copy of this ordinance to the Missouri Ethics 
Commission within ten (10) days of its adoption. 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 41 August 4, 2020 

PASSED THIS ____ DAY OF AUGUST 2020. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________   
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 
 
First Reading: 08/04/2020 
    
Second Reading:     08/18/2020  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 42 

Section 135.010 Declaration of Policy.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014[1]; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

It is the policy of the City of Smithville, Missouri, to uphold, promote and demand ethical conduct from its elected 

and appointed public officials (hereinafter "public officials"). The citizens and businesses of the City are entitled to 

have fair, ethical and accountable local government. The City recognizes the importance of codifying and making 

known to the general public the ethical principles that guide the work of public officials. Public officials of the City 

are to maintain the highest standards of personal integrity, truthfulness and fairness in carrying out their public 

duties. In order to fulfill this mission, the City hereby adopts a Code of Ethics for public officials to assure public 

confidence in the integrity of local government and its effective and fair operation. Unless specifically defined 

otherwise, the terms used in Chapter 135 shall be defined as set forth in Section 105.450, RSMo., et seq., as now 

adopted or hereinafter amended. 

 

[1]  Editor's Note: Section 1 of this ordinance also repealed former Ch. 135, Code of Ethics, as adopted and 

amended by Ord. No. 1407 §1, 8-27-1991; Res. of 8-15-1995; Ord. No. 1805-98 §§1 — 2, 8-18-1998; Ord. No. 

2022-01 §§1 — 3, 8-21-2001; Ord. No. 2110-02 §§1 — 2, 8-20-2002; Ord. No. 2110-03 §§1 — 2, 8-19-2003; Ord. 

No. 2303-04 §§1 — 3, 8-17-2004; Ord. No. 2402-05 §§1 — 2, 8-16-2005; Ord. No. 2483-06 §§1 — 2, 8-1-2006; 

Ord. No. 2568-07 §§1 — 2, 7-17-2007; Ord. No. 2717-09 §§1 — 2, 6-2-2009; Ord. No. 2768-10 §§1 — 2, 9-7-

2010; Ord. No. 2844-12 §§1 — 2, 8-7-2012. 

 

Section 135.020 Responsibility of Public Office.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Stewardship of the public interest shall be the public official's primary concern, working for the common good 

of the citizens of the City and avoiding actions that are inconsistent with the best interests of the City. All 

persons, claims and transactions coming before the Board of Aldermen or any City board, commission or 

committee shall be assured of fair and equal treatment. 

 

Section 135.030 Compliance With Laws.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials are agents of public purpose and hold office for the benefit of the public. They are bound to 

uphold the laws of the nation, State and the City and to carry out impartially these laws in the performance of 

their public duties to foster respect for all government. These laws include, but are not limited to, the United 

States and Missouri Constitutions, the laws of the State of Missouri and City ordinances. 

 

Section 135.040 Conduct of Officials.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

The professional and personal conduct of public officials shall be above reproach and shall avoid even the 

appearance of impropriety. Public officials shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal 

attacks upon the character or motives of the Mayor, other members of the Board of Aldermen, boards, 

commissions, committees, City staff and the public. 

 

Section 135.050 Performance of Duties.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and rules of order as established by 

the Board of Aldermen, boards, commissions and committees governing the deliberation of public policy issues, 

meaningful involvement of the public and implementation of policy decisions of the Board of Aldermen by City 

staff. 

 

Section 135.060 Public Meetings.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials shall prepare themselves for the public issues, listening courteously and attentively to all public 

discussion before the body and focus on the business at hand. Public officials shall refrain from interrupting 

other speakers, making personal comments not relevant to the business of the body or otherwise interfere with 

the orderly conduct of meetings. 

http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671984
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#ft28671984-1
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671983
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#ref28671984-1
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883941
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671985
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671986
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671994
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671995


  Regular Session 

 Page 43 August 4, 2020 

Section 135.070 Decision Based on Merit.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials shall base their decisions on the merits and the substance at hand. 

 

Section 135.080 Communication.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Unless otherwise prohibited by law, privilege or the rules of evidence, public officials shall publicly share with 

the Board of Aldermen or any boards, commissions and/or committees of the City any substantive information 

that is relevant to a matter under consideration by said entity of which they have knowledge from any source. 

 

Section 135.090 Conflict of Interest.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

A.  In order to assure independence and impartiality on behalf of the common good, public officials shall not 

use their official positions to influence government decisions in which they have a substantial interest or 

personal relationship, or which may reasonably give rise to the appearance of a conflict of interest or 

impropriety. 

 

B.  The Mayor or any member of the Board of Aldermen who has a substantial interest in any bill shall 

disclose on the records of the Board of Aldermen the nature of his or her interest and shall disqualify 

himself or herself from participation in deliberation or voting on any matters relating to this interest. 

 

C.  Public officials should avoid action, whether or not specifically prohibited, which might reasonably result 

in or create the appearance of using their public office for private gain. 

 

Section 135.100 Gifts, Gratuities and Favors.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 105, RSMo., relating to the acceptance and 

reporting of gifts, gratuities and favors. 

 

Section 135.110 Confidentiality of Information.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Unless approved by the Board of Aldermen, no elected or appointed public official shall disclose or make 

public any information which is otherwise closed to the public pursuant to Section 610.021, RSMo. or 

otherwise protected from disclosure by Missouri or Federal law. No public official shall use or provide 

information obtained as a result of his or her position for the benefit of the public official or the recipient in an 

advantageous position over the general public. 

 

Section 135.120 Use of Public Resources.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

A.  Unless specifically permitted by City policy, the use of City facilities, equipment, vehicles, supplies, on-

duty personnel or other goods or services is limited to City business. Public resources may not be used for 

private gain or personal purposes except on the same basis that they are otherwise normally available to the 

public. Normal rental or usage fees may not be waived except in accordance with City policy. 

 

B.  A public official shall not utilize the City's name, letterhead, logo or seal for the purpose of endorsing any 

political candidate, business, commercial product or service. 

 
Section 135.130 Advocacy.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

As nonpartisan stewards of the public interest, the Mayor and members of the Board of Aldermen shall not 

appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the Board of Aldermen or any other board, 

commission, committee or proceeding in the City. Public officials of boards, commissions and committees shall 

http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28671999
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883942
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883943
http://www.ecode360.com/28883944#28883944
http://www.ecode360.com/28883945#28883945
http://www.ecode360.com/28883946#28883946
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883947
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883948
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883949
http://www.ecode360.com/28883950#28883950
http://www.ecode360.com/28883951#28883951
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883952


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 44 

not appear before their own bodies or before the Board of Aldermen on behalf of the private interests of third 

parties on matters related to the areas of service of their bodies. Public officials shall represent the official 

policies or positions of the City to the best of their abilities when designated as delegates for this purpose. When 

representing their individual opinions and positions, public officials shall explicitly state that they do not 

represent their body or the City and they shall not give the inference that they do. 

 

Section 135.140 Policy Role of Members.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials shall respect and adhere to the City Administrator form of government as outlined in the 

ordinances, policies and procedures with respect to the City Administrator's relationship to the Board of 

Aldermen. In this structure, the Board of Aldermen determines the policies of the City with the advice, 

information and analysis provided by the public, boards, commissions, committees and City staff. Individual 

Board of Aldermen members shall not, except at the direction of the entire Board of Aldermen, have any role in 

the administrative functions of the City or the professional duties of City staff or the implementation of City 

policy or decisions. This prohibition shall not apply to the Mayor, nor the Mayor Pro Tem acting in the Mayor's 

absence. Additionally, this prohibition shall not apply to any individual Board of Aldermen's ability to obtain 

information reasonably necessary to perform his or her duties. 

 

Section 135.150 Independence of Boards, Commissions and Committees.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

The value of independent advice and recommendations of boards, commissions and committees to the public 

decision-making process is of such significance that members of the Board of Aldermen should refrain from 

using their positions to influence the deliberations or outcomes of board, commission and committee 

proceedings. This prohibition is not meant to include the actions of any Board of Aldermen when acting as a 

member of any such committee. 

 

Section 135.160 Behavior.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

All City elected and appointed officials shall conduct themselves in a professional business manner and should 

refrain from the public use of profane or offensive language so as to reflect well on the City. 

 

Section 135.170 Positive Workplace Environment.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

Public officials shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive workplace environment for the City 

employees and for citizens and businesses dealing with the City. 

 

Section 135.180 Implementation.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

A.  The Code of Ethics for public officials of the City is intended to be self-enforcing. Therefore, it becomes 

most effective when public officials are thoroughly familiar with it and embrace its provisions. For this 

reason, these ethical standards shall be included in the regular orientation of candidates for Board of 

Aldermen, newly elected officials and appointed members of all boards, commissions and committees of 

the City. 

 

B.  The Code of Ethics shall be reviewed biannually by the Board of Aldermen. Recommendations received 

from the review shall be considered by the Board of Aldermen. 

Section 135.190 Compliance and Enforcement.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

A.  The City's Code of Ethics expresses standards of ethical conduct expected for the public officials of the 

Board of Aldermen, boards, commissions and committees. Public officials themselves have the primary 

responsibility to assure that ethical standards are understood and met and that the public can continue to 

have full confidence in the integrity of the government. 

http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883953
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883954
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883955
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883956
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883957
http://www.ecode360.com/28883958#28883958
http://www.ecode360.com/28883959#28883959
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883960
http://www.ecode360.com/28883961#28883961


  Regular Session 

 Page 45 August 4, 2020 

 

B.  A person making a complaint against a public official for violation of this policy shall submit the 

complaint, in writing, to the Mayor who shall conduct or cause to be conducted an investigation as he or 

she reasonably believes is warranted by the complaint. The Mayor may request the aid of the City Attorney, 

Police or other City employees with said investigation. The Mayor may choose to disregard any 

anonymous complaint or complaint not based on personal or credible evidence as determined in the sole 

discretion of the Mayor. If the Mayor determines that the complaint may warrant disciplinary action by the 

Board of Aldermen, the Mayor shall cause a special session of the Board of Aldermen to be held for the 

purpose of conducting a hearing with regard to said allegations/complaint, said hearing to be conducted 

pursuant to the Missouri Administrative Procedures Act, Section 536.010, RSMo., et seq., as now adopted 

or hereinafter amended. 

 

C.  Any complaint concerning the Mayor shall be made to the Mayor Pro Tern who shall have the same 

authority as the Mayor set forth above when reviewing any such complaint. 

 

D.  The Board of Aldermen shall make a final determination upon a majority vote of all members, except for 

any member of the Board of Aldermen who is the subject of a complaint. The standard of proof required 

for a final determination of violation of this policy (unless otherwise required by law) shall be a 

preponderance of the evidence. At the discretion of the Board of Aldermen, sanctions may include private 

or public reprimand or censure, removal or exclusion from leadership positions, the governing board, and 

other official positions or duties that do not conflict with Missouri Statutes. 

 

Section 135.200 (Reserved)  

 

Section 135.210 Disclosure Reports.  

[Ord. No. 2895-14 §1, 7-1-2014; Ord. No. 2954-16 §1, 9-6-2016] 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ecode360.com/28883962#28883962
http://www.ecode360.com/28883963#28883963
http://www.ecode360.com/28883964#28883964
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883965
http://www.ecode360.com/28671983#28883966


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 46 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT - HUMPHREY’S 100 GRAVEL GRINDER 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: Police Department 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution 807, Special Event Permit – Humphrey’s 100 Gravel 
Grinder Bike Race 

Summary: 

Approval of this item will issue a Special Event Permit to Smithville Parks and 
Recreation Department for the Humphrey’s 100 Gravel Grinder Bike Race, a bicycle 
race that will begin and end at Courtyard Park on September 26, 2020. 

Purpose: 

The requested permit will allow the participants to have alcohol (open container) at 
the event.  The event is scheduled from 6:00 a.m. until 10:00 p.m. at Courtyard Park.  
Per City Ordinance 600.070 (G & H) the Board of Aldermen may grant a Special Event 
Permit to allow drinking in public. 
 
The event coordinators will utilize Chops BBQ & Catering as the alcohol vendor.  This 
business currently possesses appropriate City and State Alcohol Licenses.   

 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: No impact 

Economic Development Plan: No impact 

Parks Master Plan: No impact 

Strategic Plan: No impact 

Capital Improvement Plan: No impact 

Budget: No impact 

Legislative History: 

 

Suggested Action: 

A motion to approve Resolution 807 issuing a Special Event Permit to Smithville Parks 
& Recreation for Humphrey’s 100 Gravel Grinder Bike Race to be held on September 
26, 2020 at Courtyard Park. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: Map & Ord. 600.070 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 47 August 4, 2020 

RESOLUTION 807 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FOR SMITHVILLE 
PARKS AND RECREATION FOR HUMPHREY’S 100 GRAVEL GRINDER BIKE 

RACE AT COURTYARD PARK ON SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2020. 
 
WHEREAS, Smithville Parks & Recreation has submitted an application with all required 
documentation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a local and licensed business will supply the alcoholic beverages for a fee 
to the participants in a vendor area at Courtyard Park using their State and City licenses 
to sell alcohol; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a map of the area and will monitor the area 
that will allow open consumption of alcohol in accordance with city code; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Smithville police officers will assist in providing security at the event. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT BE ISSUED TO SMITHVILLE PARKS & 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT FOR HUMPHREY’S 100 GRAVEL GRINDER BIKE 
RACE TO BE HELD SEPTEMBER 26, 2020 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAN 
APPROVED BY THE CHIEF OF POLICE. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 4th day of August 2020. 
 

 
 

_________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 48 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 49 August 4, 2020 

Chapter 600. Alcoholic Beverages  
 
Section 600.070. Miscellaneous Offenses.  
[Ord. No. 3039-19, 7-16-2019] 
 
A.  Unlawful For Licensed Retailer To Purchase From Other Than Licensed Wholesaler. It shall 

be unlawful for any licensee to purchase any intoxicating liquor except from, by or through a duly 
licensed wholesale liquor dealer in this State. It shall be unlawful for such retail liquor dealer to 
sell or offer for sale any intoxicating liquor purchased in violation of the provisions of this Section. 

 
B.  Packaging, Labeling, Repackaging Prohibited, When. Any retailer licensed pursuant to this 

Chapter shall not: 
 

1. Sell intoxicating liquor with an alcohol content of less than five percent (5%) by weight to the 
consumer in an original carton received from the wholesaler that has been mutilated, torn 
apart or cut apart; or 

 
2. Repackage intoxicating liquor with an alcohol content of less than five percent (5%) by 

weight in a manner misleading to the consumer or that results in required labeling being 
omitted or obscured. 
 

C.  Mixing Liquor With Drugs Prohibited. No licensee, or any other person, shall for any purpose 
whatsoever mix or permit or cause to be mixed with any intoxicating liquor kept for sale, sold or 
supplied by him/her as a beverage any drug or form of methyl alcohol or impure form of alcohol. 

 
D.  Unlawful To Sell Unlabeled Liquor — Penalty. It shall be unlawful for any person to sell any 

intoxicating liquor which has not been inspected and labeled according to the provisions of the 
Liquor Control Law of Missouri, and any such person upon conviction shall have his/her license 
revoked and shall be ineligible to receive any subsequent liquor license for a period of two (2) 
years thereafter. 

 
E.  Only Those Liquors Authorized By License To Be Kept On Premises. It shall be unlawful for 

any licensee licensed for the sale of intoxicating liquor at retail by the drink for consumption on 
the premises to keep in or upon the premises described in such license any intoxicating liquor 
other than the kind of liquor expressly authorized to be sold by such licensee. 

 
F.  Persons Apparently Intoxicated Not To Be Provided With Intoxicating Liquor. It shall be 

unlawful for any licensee, or his/her employee or agent, to sell or supply intoxicating liquor, or 
permit such to be sold or supplied, to a habitual drunkard or to any person who is under or 
apparently under the influence of intoxicating liquor. 

 
G.  Drinking In Public Places Prohibited. 
 

1. For purposes of this Section, the term "public place" shall mean any public street, highway, 
alley, sidewalk, thoroughfare or other public way of the City, or any parking lot. 

 
2. No person shall drink or ingest any intoxicating liquor in or on any public place. 

 
3. No person shall possess or have under his/her control any unsealed glass, bottle, can or 

other open container of any type containing any intoxicating liquor while in or upon any public 
place. 

 

https://www.ecode360.com/print/SM3433?guid=28676551#28676450
https://www.ecode360.com/print/SM3433?guid=28676551#28676551
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884279#28884279
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884280#28884280
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884283#28884283
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884284#28884284
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884285#28884285
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884286#28884286
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884287#28884287


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 50 

4. No person shall possess or have under his/her control any unsealed glass, bottle, can or 
other open container of any type containing any intoxicating liquor while within or on any 
motor vehicle while the same is being operated upon, or parked or standing in or upon, any 
public place. Any person operating a motor vehicle shall be deemed to be in possession of 
an open container contained within the motor vehicle he/she has control of whether or not 
he/she has actual physical possession of the open container. 

H.  Special Event Permit. The Board of Aldermen may grant a special event permit for purposes as 
identified in Section 600.070(G)(1), above, and under the following conditions: 

 
1. An application must be filed with the Chief of Police that describes the applicant's name and 

business or interest in the event; the name(s) and contact information of any or all liquor 
license holders who will be involved in such event; the public street, highway, alley, sidewalk, 
thoroughfare or other public way of the City, or any parking lot to be included in the event 
area; the beginning and ending time of such event; and the telephone contact of the person 
in charge of and present at the event. 

 
2. The estimated number of participants in the event shall be provided to the Chief of Police, 

and the applicant shall pay all costs of security needed as a result of the event to ensure 
compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.ecode360.com/print/34400034#34400034
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28884288#28884288


  Regular Session 

 Page 51 August 4, 2020 

ACKNOWLEDGING EMERGENCY PURCHASE – MI5Q6 MIXER 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: Public Works 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution 808, Acknowledging emergency repairs to the chemical 
mixer at the Water Treatment Plant approved by the City 
Administrator. 

Summary: 
Voting to approve would acknowledge certain work that was completed by the 
contractor previously authorized by the City Administrator. 

Purpose: 

The Purchasing Policy outlines the spending authority of the City Administrator at 
$7,500.  From time to time, it is necessary for the Administrator to authorize purchases 
or expenditures exceeding that authority in order to address an immediate need.  
When this occurs, the Board is notified of the emergency need and that the 
administrator has authorized the necessary purchase.   
 
The Chemical Feed Mixer at the water treatment plant was installed in 1993. The mixer 
is used to mix chemicals into the raw water fed from Smithville Lake before entering 
the primary basin. The current mixer is a Lightnin XJQ-230. The mixer has been rebuilt 
several times and parts are obsolete. The mixer is experiencing bearing failure and 
tripping the breaker at the plant. This mixer needs to be replaced as soon as possible 
to guarantee proper treatment in the basin. 
 
In this circumstance three of four pumps were plugged and not working. If the 
last/fourth pump shuts down, wastewater would begin backing up, potentially causing 
property damage.   
 
Authorization of an expense for an amount of $9154.76 is included in the attached 
resolution.  This expenditure was necessary for the continuous operation of the water 
plant / treatment operations.  There are sufficient funds available in the FY20 water 
plant maintenance budget for this expenditure. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: N/A 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 52 

Budget: 
Funds are available in the FY20 water plant 
maintenance budget   

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve the Resolution 808.  

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Finance Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes        Other: quote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  Regular Session 

 Page 53 August 4, 2020 

RESOLUTION 808 
 

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING EMERGENCY REPAIRS TO THE CHEMICAL 
MIXER AT THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT APPROVED BY THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Administrator’s purchasing authority is $7,500: and  
 
WHEREAS, the Chemical Feed Mixer is a critical piece of equipment used in the 
production of potable drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chemical Feed Mixer is experiencing bearing failure; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to expedite repairs, the City Administrator approved an emergency 
purchased based on receipt of three quotes; and 
 
WHEREAS, repairs to be completed by Mid-America Pump have been authorized in the 
amount of $9,154.76. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT EMERGENCY APPROVAL OF COSTS TO REPAIR THE CHEMICAL FEED 
MIXER IS ACKNOWLEDGED AS AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $9,154.76. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 4th day of August 2020. 
 

 
 

_________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 
 
 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 54 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 55 August 4, 2020 

ACKNOWLEDGING EMERGENCY PURCHASE – CULVERT REPLACEMENT 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: Public Works 

Agenda Item: 
Resolution 809, Acknowledging emergency repairs to Cliff Drive 
approved by the City Administrator. 

Summary: 
Voting to approve would acknowledge certain emergency work that was completed by 
the contractor and authorized by the City Administrator. 

Purpose: 

The Purchasing Policy outlines the spending authority of the City Administrator at 
$7,500.  From time to time, it is necessary for the Administrator to authorize purchases 
exceeding that authority in order to address and immediate need.  When this occurs, 
the Board is notified of the emergency need and that the Administrator has authorized 
the necessary purchase.  
 
On Tuesday, July 23, the City received significant rain fall. As a result, we found a 
significant wash out on Cliff Drive. The reinforced concrete pipe that carries stormwater 
from the south side to the north side of the road failed at the joints and a couple of the 
pipe sections came off. The embankment subsequently collapsed leaving a 20-25-foot-
deep hole adjacent to the road. 
 
The culvert needed to be replaced and the bank reconstructed and rip-rap installed to 
prevent erosion from happening again. 
 
This was a serious collapse, adjacent to the road (approx. 1 ft). If the City were to 
receive heavy rains again, we may have lost the road leaving no access to about a 
dozen homes. It was also not safe, if we would have received more rain, the road could 
have failed as a vehicle was crossing, taking the vehicle with it.  
 
Staff obtained three quotes (two written attached and one verbal $24,000 from Foster 
Trenching) to make the repairs.  
 
Menke is the contractor on the Main Street waterline and was prepared to start 
immediately, so the repairs could be completed as soon as possible. Menke provided 
several options and it was recommended to proceed with Option B3 for $17,225.60. 
The culvert was replaced entirely and increased in size (from 24” to 36”). 
 
Menke initiated and completed the work on Friday, July 24. 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 56 

The quote included placing five inches of asphalt into the road cut. During excavation, 
the road surface was found to be only 1” to 1 ½” deep. Cliff Drive was already in poor 
shape with alligator cracking and raveling. The size and weight of equipment needed to 
make the repair did not help the road condition. As the worked progressed, the road 
was pumping from the weight of the equipment. Staff has requested Menke to provide 
a price to include a nominal overlay from Highway 169 west for 400 feet in addition to 
the five-inch repair. This would be in addition to the requested authorization. 
   
In this circumstance, Cliff Drive was in jeopardy of failing and the situation was not 
safe. To this end, authorization of an expense for an amount of $17,255.60 is included 
in the attached resolution.  This expenditure was necessary for the safety of the public 
and stability of Cliff Drive. There are sufficient funds available in the FY20 street 
maintenance budget for this expenditure. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: N/A 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 

Budget: 
Funds are available in the FY20 street maintenance 
budget   

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve the Resolution 809.  

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Finance Report 

 Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes       Other:  Quote and photos 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 57 August 4, 2020 

RESOLUTION 809 
 

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING EMERGENCY REPAIRS TO CLIFF DRIVE 
APPROVED BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Administrator’s purchasing authority is $7,500: and  
 
WHEREAS, with recent rain events, the stormwater culvert under Cliff Drive failed 
creating a washout of the embankment adjacent to the road; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to keep the road from failing it was necessary to replace the 
culvert and repair the embankment; and 
 
WHEREAS, three quotes were received for the repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to expedite repairs, the City Administrator approved an emergency 
purchase based on receipt of two bids; and  
 
WHEREAS, repairs to be completed by Menke Excavating have been authorized in an 
amount of $17,255.60.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT THE EMERGENCY APPROVAL OF COSTS TO REPAIR THE ROADWAY IS 
ACKNOWLEDGED AS AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$17,255.60. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Smithville, Missouri, the 4th day of August 2020. 
 

 
 

_________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 
 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 58 

 
 
 
 



  Regular Session 

 Page 59 August 4, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 60 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 61 August 4, 2020 

 

 

       
 

 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 62 

BID AWARD – WI-FI AT HERITAGE PARK 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: All 

Agenda Item: Resolution 810 – Live Sports Streaming at Heritage Park 

Summary: 

The FY20 Budget includes monies in the CARES Act Stimulus Fund for the purchase 
and installation of a live sports streaming system at Heritage Park.  
 
In accordance with the City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 150 – Purchasing Policy, a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued on July 8, 2020 with a closing time of 10:00 
a.m. on July 23, 2020.  
 
One response was received (included in the packet). The bid included the purchase 
and installation of all equipment and software, plus a three-year maintenance plan. 
The equipment and software totaled $23,612.17, and, if approved, will be paid from 
the CARES Act Stimulus Fund. The three-year maintenance plan totaled $16,919.64, 
however, upon review, staff recommends reducing that to a one-year maintenance 
plan. The one-year maintenance plan totaled $6,719.64, and, if approved, will be paid 
from the CARES Act Stimulus Fund.  
 
The equipment and software plus the one-year maintenance plan total $30,331.81.  
 
City staff recommends KCMOTech, LLC as the lowest and best offeror according to 
the evaluation criteria established in the RFP.  
 
KCMOTech, LLC is prepared to order the equipment immediately with completion 
anticipated by September 29 (unless delayed by shipping timeframes). The contractor 
is aware of Clay County Public Health Center and CDC guidelines regarding COVID-19 
and will comply with those recommendations throughout the duration of the project. 

Purpose:  

To award Bid#20-10 to KCMOTech, LLC according to policy in an amount not to 
exceed of $30,331.81. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 

Economic Development Plan:   N/A 



  Regular Session 

 Page 63 August 4, 2020 

Parks Master Plan:  N/A 

Strategic Plan:  N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan:  N/A 

Budget:  
Included in the FY20 CARES Act Stimulus Fund 
Budget 

Legislative History: 

None 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 810. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: Bid 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 64 

RESOLUTION 810 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT IN RESPONSE TO BID NO. 20-10 TO 
KCMOTECH, LLC FOR LIVE SPORTS STREAMING AT HERITAGE PARK. 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget allocates funds for the Live Sports Streaming 
at Heritage Park project from the CARES Act Stimulus Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has conducted a bid process as outlined in the City Purchasing Policy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, after a bid process and reference checks, staff has made a 
recommendation for accepting the lowest and best bid received as being the most 
advantageous to the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI: 
 
THAT Bid No. 20-10 is hereby awarded to KCMOTech, LLC and the Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute an agreement in an amount not to exceed $30,331.81. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Smithville, Missouri, this 4th of August 2020. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 65 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 66 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 67 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 68 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 69 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 70 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 71 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 72 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 73 August 4, 2020 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 74 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 75 August 4, 2020 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 76 

BID AWARD – CITY HALL AUDIO/VISUAL 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: All 

Agenda Item: Resolution 811 – Live Meeting Streaming at City Hall 

Summary: 

The FY20 Budget includes monies in the CARES Act Stimulus Fund for the purchase 
and installation of a live meeting streaming system at City Hall.  
 
In accordance with the City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 150 – Purchasing Policy, a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued on July 8, 2020 with a closing time of 10:00 
a.m. on July 23, 2020.  
 
One response was received (included in the packet). The bid included the purchase 
and installation of all equipment and software, plus an add-on for a live voting system. 
The equipment and software totaled $42,986.35, and, if approved, will be paid from 
the CARES Act Stimulus Fund. The live voting system add-on totaled $6,381.00. This 
add-on would have been paid from the General Fund, but staff does not recommend 
including the add-on. 
 
City staff recommends Kansas City Audio-Visual as the lowest and best offeror 
according to the evaluation criteria established in the RFP.  
 
Kansas City Audio-Visual is prepared to order the equipment immediately with 
completion anticipated by September 10 (unless delayed by shipping timeframes). The 
contractor is aware of Clay County Public Health Center and CDC guidelines regarding 
COVID-19 and will comply with those recommendations throughout the duration of the 
project. 

Purpose:  

To award Bid#20-12 to Kansas City Audio-Visual according to policy in an amount not 
to exceed of $42,986.35. 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 

Economic Development Plan:   N/A 

Parks Master Plan:  N/A 

Strategic Plan:  N/A 



  Regular Session 

 Page 77 August 4, 2020 

Capital Improvement Plan:  N/A 

Budget:  
Included in the FY20 CARES Act Stimulus Fund 
and General Fund Budgets 

Legislative History: 

None 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 811. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

  Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: Bid 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 78 

RESOLUTION 811 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT IN RESPONSE TO BID NO. 20-12 TO 
KANSAS CITY AUDIO-VISUAL FOR LIVE MEETING STREAMING AT CITY HALL. 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget allocates funds for the Live Meeting Streaming 
at City Hall project from the CARES Act Stimulus Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff has conducted a bid process as outlined in the City Purchasing Policy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, after a bid process and reference checks, staff has made a 
recommendation for accepting the lowest and best bid received as being the most 
advantageous to the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI: 
 
THAT Bid No. 20-12 is hereby awarded to Kansas City Audio-Visual and the Mayor is 
hereby authorized to execute an agreement in an amount not to exceed $42,986.35. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of 
the City of Smithville, Missouri, this 4th of August 2020. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 79 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 80 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 81 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 82 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 83 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 84 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 85 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 86 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 87 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 88 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 89 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 90 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 91 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 92 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 93 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 94 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 95 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 96 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 97 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 98 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 99 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 100 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 101 August 4, 2020 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 102 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 103 August 4, 2020 

JUNE CARES EXPENDITURES 

 City of Smithville 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2020 Department: Administration, Finance 

Agenda Item: Resolution of 812 – Approval of June CARES Expenditures 

Summary: 

This Resolution would approve expenditures on CARES-related expenses for the 
month of June 2020. 

Purpose: 

Congress passed, and the President signed, the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic 
Security (CARES) Act on March 27, 2020, which provides for federal stimulus monies 
to flow to the states by population and to counties within the state also by 
population.  
 

On May 1, 2020, the Clay County Commission approved Resolution 2020-139 which 
proposes disbursements to entities within Clay County based on population and 
identifies $945,399.87 as Smithville’s allocation. 
 

On June 16, 2020, the Board discussed staff’s proposal to approve expenditures in 
three general categories: Citywide Expenditures Related to COVID-19 Expenditures; 
Renovation of City Facilities and Purchase of Equipment to Enhance Mitigation of the 
Spread of COVID-19; Small Business Grants; and Set-Aside for Future Needs Relating 
to COVID-19. Staff has created a separate fund to track eligible expenses and 
recommends that the Board approve expenses before submitting to Clay County.  
 

The first expenditure report to Clay County included $14,433.43 of COVID-related 
expenses incurred between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020. The report along with 
other CARES-related information can be found on the City website at 
https://www.smithvillemo.org/pview.aspx?id=20815&catid=25. 
 

The second expenditure report to Clay County will include $6,122.16 of COVID-
related expenses incurred between June 1, 2020 and June 30, 2020 for purchases of 
PPE, cleaning supplies and equipment, and technology to facilitate telework. These 
expenses were originally charged to other funds but have now been transferred to 
the CARES Stimulus Act Fund upon approval of Bills 2861-20 (creation of the fund) 
and 2862-20 (appropriation of expenditures from the fund). The second expenditure 
report to Clay County also includes $7,766.96 of COVID-related legal fees incurred 
between March 1, 2020 and June 30, 2020. The second expenditure report totals 
$13,889.12. Expenditures are detailed on the attached report, which will be filed with 
Clay County on or before August 15, 2020. 

https://www.smithvillemo.org/pview.aspx?id=20815&catid=25


Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 104 

 

Impact: 

Comprehensive Plan: N/A 

Economic Development Plan: N/A 

Parks Master Plan: N/A 

Strategic Plan: N/A 

Capital Improvement Plan: N/A 

Budget: CARES funding 

Legislative History: 

N/A 

Suggested Action: 

Motion to approve Resolution 812. 

Attachments:  Plans  Contract  Staff Report 

Ordinance  Resolution  Minutes  Other: 
August 15 Clay 
County Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res812-JuneCARESExpendituresagenda11741134073020-100707AMb.pdf
https://smithvillemissouri.municipalcms.com/files/documents/Res812-JuneCARESExpendituresagenda11741134073020-100707AMb.pdf


  Regular Session 

 Page 105 August 4, 2020 

 
RESOLUTION 812 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING EXPENDITURES FROM THE CARES ACT 
STIMULUS FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF $13,889.12 FOR EXPENDITURES 
RELATED TO THE COVID19 PANDEMIC.  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, 
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Smithville was disbursed approximately $945,400 through Clay 
County for eligible cost reimbursement of expenses related to addressing the COVID19 
pandemic; and  
 
WHEREAS, eligible expenses and documentation is required to be submitted monthly 
to Clay County; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order track eligible expenditures the City established a separate fund 
titled CARES Act Stimulus Fund; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends that eligible expenditures incurred between June 1, 
2020 and June 30, 2020 totaling $13,889.12 in the CARES Act Stimulus Fund.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that expenditures totaling $13,889.12 in the 
CARES Act Stimulus Fund are approved for prior expenses and will be reported to Clay 
County on or before August 15, 2020. 
 
PASSED THIS 4th DAY OF August 2020 
 
 
______________________________ 
 Damien Boley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Linda Drummond, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 106 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 107 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 108 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 109 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 110 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 111 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Smithville Board of Aldermen 

Agenda Notes Page 112 

 

 

 

 

 



  Regular Session 

 Page 113 August 4, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


